
 

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 

Notice of a Meeting 
People Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday, 7 April 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

If you wish to view proceedings online, please click on this LIVE STREAM LINK. 

 
In line with current Government advice, those attending the meeting are asked to 

consider wearing a face-covering. 
 
Membership 

 
Chair - Councillor Ian Corkin 

Deputy Chair - Councillor Kate Gregory 
 
Councillors: Juliette Ash 

Hannah Banfield 
Imade Edosomwan 

Andy Graham 

Nigel Simpson 
Bethia Thomas 

Michael Waine 

Co-optees: To be appointed.      

Notes: Date of next meeting: 16 June 2022 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 

Chair Councillor Ian Corkin 
Email: ian.corkin@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Officer Khalid Ahmed, Tel: 07990368048 
E-Mail: khalid.ahmed@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
Stephen Chandler 

Interim Chief Executive March 2022 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:@video%20link:%20https://oxon.cc/POSC07042022,%20https://oxon.cc/POSC07042022


 

 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 

 All services and preventative activities/initiatives relating to children, young people, 
education, families and older people.  

 Enables the council to scrutinise it statutory functions relation to children, adult social care 
and safeguarding. Includes public health matters where they are not covered by the Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 This committee will also consider matters relating to care leavers and the transition between 
children’s and adult services 

 
How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities of this 
Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda or may suggest 
matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to speak must be submitted 
to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am 4 working day before the date of the 
meeting. 

 
About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 63 councillors who are democratically elected 
every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 678,000 residents. 
These include: 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 

the fire service roads  trading standards 

land use  transport planning waste management 

 
Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. Most 
decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about service priorities 
and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny  

Scrutiny is about: 

 Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
 Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  

 Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 

 Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 

 Representing the community in Council decision making  

 Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
 Making day to day service decisions 

 Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 4 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, which lists 
the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole committee 
investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of members doing research 
and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an investigation is completed the 
Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full Council or other scrutiny committees. 
Meetings are open to the public and all reports are available to the public unless exempt or 
confidential, when the items would be considered in closed session. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, giving as much notice as possible before the 
meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Introduction and Welcome  
 

2. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

3. Declaration of Interests - see guidance note on the back page  
 

4. Minutes (Pages 1-9) 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2022 and to receive 

information arising from them. 
 

5. Petitions and Public Address  
 
Currently council meetings are taking place in-person (not virtually) with Covid safety 

procedures operating in the venues.  However, members of the public who wish to speak 
at this meeting can attend the meeting ‘virtually’ through an online connection.  While you 

can ask to attend the meeting in person, you are strongly encouraged to attend ‘virtually’ 
to minimise the risk of Covid-19 infection. 
 

Please also note that in line with current government guidance all attendees are strongly 
encouraged to take a lateral flow test in advance of the meeting. 

 
Normally requests to speak at this public meeting are required by 9 am on the day 
preceding the published date of the meeting. However, during the current situation and to 

facilitate these new arrangements we are asking that requests to speak are submitted by 
no later than 9am four working days before the meeting i.e. 9 am on Friday 1 April 2022 

Requests to speak should be sent to khalid.ahmed@oxfordshire.gov.uk .  You will be 
contacted by the officer regarding the arrangements for speaking. 
 

If you ask to attend in person, the officer will also advise you regarding Covid-19 safety 
at the meeting.  If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your 

presentation to ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into 
account. A written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working 
days before the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet. 

 

6. Josh McAllister Review and an Overview of the National SEND 
Review  

 

The Corporate Director of Children’s Services will provide the Committee with a 
presentation on the Josh McAllister Review and on an Overview of the National SEND 
Review and to inform the Committee of national policy updates and their potential 

implications for Oxfordshire.     
 

7. Oxfordshire Adults Services  
 
The Deputy Director Adult Social Care will provide the Committee with a report. 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 

 

 



- 2 - 
 

 

8. Statutory Co-Opted Members to the Committee (Pages 11-14) 
 

The Committee’s Scrutiny Officer will present a report on strengthening the diversity of 
the Committee whilst ensuring statutory co-opted members are in place for the next 

municipal year.   
 

9. Approach to Work Programming 2022/23  
 
An oral report from the Chair on the approach to determining the Committee’s work 

programme for 2022/23.  
 
Close of meeting 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting? 

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes “any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 

 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
democracy@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the document.  

 
 

 

 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:democracy@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

PEOPLE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 17 February 2022 commencing at 10.00 

am and finishing at 1.30pm. 

 
Present: 

 
Voting Members: Councillor Ian Corkin – in the Chair 

 

Councillor Kate Gregory (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Juliette Ash 

Councillor Hannah Banfield 
Councillor Imade Edosomwan 
Councillor Andy Graham 

Councillor Nigel Simpson 
Councillor Dan Levy (substituting for Councillor Bethia 

Thomas) 
 
Other Members  

in Attendance: 

Councillor Liz Brighouse, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member for Children, Education and Young People’s 
Services and Councillor John Howson   

 

By Invitation: Derek Benson, the Independent Chair of the Oxfordshire 

Safeguarding Children Board, Simon Knight – Head 

Teacher. 
 
Officers: Kate Bradley - Head of SEND, Michael Carr – Scrutiny 

Officer, Barbara Chillman - Service Manager, Pupil Place 
Planning, Neil Darlington - Service Manager, Admissions 

& Transport, Ed Edwards – Senior SEND Consultation 
Officer, Paul Fermer - Assistant Director of Community 
Operations, Kevin Gordon, Director for Children’s 

Services, Lara Patel - Deputy Director, Safeguarding 
Children’s Social Care, Sandra Pearce - Supported 

Transport Manager, Carole Stow - Consultation Manager 
of OCC, Susannah Wintersgill -  Director for Strategy, 
Insight and Communications, and Khalid Ahmed – Law 

and Governance. 
 

 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below.  

Copies of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

1/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 2) 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Bethia Thomas (Councillor Dan 

Levy substituted). 
 

2/22 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2022 were agreed and signed. 
 

In relation to the Co-Option of Members to this Committee, officers were asked to 
progress this. 

 

3/22 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 

Ms Debbie List attended the meeting and made a public address in relation to 
Agenda Item 6 -  Overview of Home To School Transport In Oxfordshire. 

 
The Committee was informed that Ms List lives in the village of Standlake. She has 
three children, two of which attended the local primary school. When applying for a 

secondary school place for her eldest son, they applied to the catchment school, 
Bartholomew School but was told that they would have to pay for transport as there 

was a closer school, although it was not their catchment school.  
 
When applying for Bartholomew School for her second son, they were told there 

would be no transport. This was obviously a blow as there was no transport. Her son 
was offered transport on a community bus, a 16 seater minibus, which was run by 

volunteers. 
 
Ms List questioned the policy as her sons would get transport paid for if they attended 

a school which was closer, although not in catchment. Ms List questioned the 
inequality of the policy. 

 
Mr John Christie attended the meeting and made a public address in relation to 
Agenda Item 6 -  Overview of Home To School Transport In Oxfordshire. 

 
The Committee was informed that the Council is wrongly denying free school 

transport from children from Middle Barton to their long established catchment area 
partner school Chipping Norton because it claims there are places available at a 
nearer school Heyford Park.(HPS) 

 
When Heyford Park Free School opened (HPS), it became the nearest school for 

Middle Barton. This appeared unlikely to affect free transport to Chipping Norton 
School because HPS is a small 2 FE all-through school and so would not have 
places for all or any Middle Barton year 7 students. Its website indicated that it did not 

plan to admit any year 7 students. 
 

However, because the school is undersubscribed it now states it will admit pupils to a 
small number of places it has in year 7, although the admissions policy confusingly 
still states that ‘there will cease to be a formal entry point in year 7’. 

 

Page 2



 

In 2018 there was one vacant year 7 place at HPS. 12 children from Middle Barton 

were to go to Chipping Norton School, but because there was one place available at 
HPS, OCC deemed that the nearest school with places available was HPS and none 
of the 12 were entitled to free transport. This is at a cost of c 700 pounds a year per 

child.  
  

This decision appears harsh and unreasonable. This is because there was not a 
place for each Middle Barton child at HPS, but just one, leaving the 11 children who 
did not have a place at HPS still without free transport 

 
A second unreasonable decision by OCC occurred in 2021 when 11 places were 

available at HPS and 20 children in Middle Barton did not get free home to school 
transport. All the children who were part of the year 7 intake for the previous 2 years 
had been given free transport, as no places were available at HPS, leading parents 

to reasonably conclude that this would also be the case in 2021. 
 

 Paragraph 25 of the statutory guidance makes it clear that: 
 
" At the point when transport eligibility is considered, the prospect of being able to 

secure a place in an alternative (usually nearer) school must be a real one. “ 
 

Parents in Middle Barton think that their children did not have a real prospect of a 
place at HPS because as an all through 2FE school is not designed to have an intake 
at year 7 and that there are far fewer paces available at HPS than the number of 

potential applicants from Middle Barton.  
 
They also consider that HPS is not a suitable alternative school for entry at year 7 

because their children would 
 

- be isolated from their peers that they have been educated with at primary 
school, and placed in a through-school environment where the HPS children have 
been together since nursery. 

- have never taken part in any partnership activities with the school as they have 
with Chipping Norton School. 

 
    - have to attend an unviable small 2FE school which cannot offer a full broad and 
balanced curriculum and full range of extra-curricular activities 

 
- have to attend a school which has been rated as inadequate by Ofsted partly 

due no doubt to its inadequate size 
 
They request that OCC decide that free transport should not be refused to Middle 

Barton parents unless there are places available at HPS for all Middle Barton 
children. This would be a correct and reasonable application of the statutory 

guidance.  
 
OCC should be facilitating the best education for their children rather than looking for 

loopholes to avoid paying for home to school transport, especially in these times of 
financial hardship. 

 

Page 3



 

4/22 OVERVIEW OF HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT IN OXFORDSHIRE  
(Agenda No. 6) 
 

The Committee was provided with a report which provided an overview of the Home 
to School Transport Policy in Oxfordshire. The report contained the following 

information:   
 
• Current arrangements including parental preference 

• Pupil projections, expansion plans and need 
• How to create fairness within the system 

• How to decarbon the service 
• Service User experience and opinion 
 

The Director for Children’s Services attended the meeting and introduced Neil 
Darlington (Admissions and Transport), Sandra Pearce (Transport Hub) and Paul 

Fermer (Community Operations) who provided details of the Policy to Members. 
 
The current arrangements for Home to School Transport are that normally eligibility 

for free travel is determined at the time that a school place is allocated through, 
Oxfordshire County Council’s Coordinated Admissions Scheme for entry at the 

normal points of admission; and/or, the issuing of an Education, Health and Care 
Plan; and/or, the operation of the Fair Access Protocol; and/or, 
the In-Year Coordinated Admissions Scheme.  

 
The key principles in the Council’s current policy were:  

 Free travel to “Nearest school” if in excess of statutory walking distances (2 
miles if under 8 years of age, 3 miles if 8 to 16 years of age) 

 Post 16 free travel for SEN students to the nearest college/school at which 
need can be met 

 Providing a spare seat scheme 

 Providing a formal appeals process 
 

Under the Home to School Travel and Transport Policy, children and young people 
were entitled to free travel which was provided by the most cost-effective means. This 

was usually by the provision of a free bus pass, however, where numbers were small, 
children were sometimes transported by taxi. In addition, if parents wanted to take 
their children to school themselves, the Council may agree to the payment of a 

mileage allowance.   
 

If free travel was agreed, children and young people would be expected to use public 
transport or, if this is unavailable, contracted transport such as a coach or minibus. It 
was expected up to Year 5, parents would accompany children. Once a child was in 

Year 6 and above only the child would only receive free travel. 
 

In relation to SEND, the Council has a duty to make suitable arrangements as they 
deem necessary to facilitate attendance at school for eligible children between the 
ages of 5-16 (Section 508B of the Education Act, 1996). This transport provision 

applied if their nearest suitable school was beyond 2 miles (if below the age of 8) or 
beyond 3 miles (if aged between 8 and 16).  

 

Page 4



 

There is a statutory responsibility to make transport arrangements for SEN Pupils 

who cannot reasonably be expected to walk to school because of their mobility 
problems or because of associated health and safety issues related to their SEN or 
disability.  

 
Reference was made to current pupil projections which indicated a 1.2% increase in 

primary pupil numbers and for secondary school pupils a 7.8% predicted rise 
between 2020/21 and 2025/26. Longer term, due to the high levels of housing growth 
planned for the county, projections were that these numbers would increase.  

 
The report provided details on the Council’s plans to reach a position where all 

tendered supported transport services would be carbon neutral.  
 
Work was to commence to understand how the Council could influence the market to 

reach this position by specifying higher vehicle standards in its tender documents and 
incentivising the use of cleaner vehicles and practices through its contract award 

mechanisms. It was hoped this would influence the taxi and coach industry as a 
whole to reduce its carbon emissions and also to establish best practice for others 
local authorities to follow. 

 
In relation to the Council’s own internal fleet of around 70 minibuses, there was a 

commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030.  
 
Issues raised by Members 

 
• Clarity was required on how the criteria for eligibility of free travel was set 

and that these were equitable. 

• The Home to School Transport policy does not relate to school catchment 
areas and there are anomalies such as split village schemes. 

• There were resource implications as the Team was small and it had 
responsibility for the whole county. 

• The Admissions Policy had to be clear that free school transport was only 

provided to children when they go to their nearest suitable school and in 
accordance with the Council’s published Home to School Transport policy. 

• Parental preference had an impact on the policy and it needed to be made 
clearer to parents the implications when making their preferences.  

• For some schools, the whole County was the catchment area. This needed 

to be recognised. 
• There needed to more work undertaken in terms of enabling children to 

cycle, walk or use public transport to schools i.e provision of facilities such 
as secure cycle sheds in schools. 

• There needed to be more localised SEND Provision in schools which would 

reduce transport costs. 
• Travel times needed to be reduced in rural areas as buses on the rural 

network did not travel quickly. 
• Covid has had an impact on delivering training to schools which has 

affected SEND travel. 

• Reference was made to free travel being made available if the distance 
from the child’s home to the nearest school is under the statutory walking 

Page 5



 

distance but the route is unsafe to walk. Routes were assessed assuming a 

responsible adult was available to accompany the child.  
• The spare seats scheme operated on contracted bus routes which were 

operated for the benefit of those entitled to free transport. Where there 

were more requests to pay for seats than the number available, there are 
equitable criteria to determine to which pupils the seats will be offered, 

which was adopted (outlined in the report). 
• The Home to School Transport policy required review and comparisons 

should be made with other Councils and what other countries did. 

• The policy should be linked to school travel plans and safer routes to 
school. 

• Reference was made to Central Government providing the statutory 
framework for Home to School Travel and Transport, which local 
authorities must have regard to.   

• Sixth formers have a high priority for spare seats because the local 
authority has a legal obligation to ensure access post 16 education. 

• The impact of housing growth and increased pupil numbers needed to be 
taken into consideration in any policy review. 

• In relation to decarbonisation of all tendered supported transport services, 

there needed work to be done on the numbers and types of vehicles, 
including the Council’s own internal fleet of 70 minibuses. Members were 

informed that there were 130 coaches, 500 cars, 120 minibuses from 140 
providers who were working with the Council.    

 
RESOLVED – (1) That the report and the information presented be noted. 
 
(2) That a Working Group be set up to consider the Home to School Transport 

Policy and the options for the policy, the impact on carbon emissions, the 
equalities implications.  

 
(3) That if possible, the Working Group should meet before the next meeting of 
the Committee to consider the issue and agree a report and any 

recommendations to the Cabinet for submission to the next meeting of the 
People Overview and Scrutiny Committee for endorsement. 

 
(4) That the membership of the Home to School Transport Policy Scrutiny 
Working Party is: 

(Cllr Juliette Ash, Cllr Andy Graham, Cllr Kate Gregory and Cllr Michael Waine) 
with the following terms of reference: 

i). to consider the Home to School Transport Policy and the options for any 
changes to the policy, 
ii). to consider the impact on carbon emissions, 

iii). to consider the equalities implications, 
iv). to agree a report and any recommendations to the Cabinet for submission 

to the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee for endorsement.  

 

5/22 SERIOUS CASE REVIEW: CHILD R  
(Agenda No. 7) 

 

Page 6



 

The Committee was provided with a report of a Serious Case Review of child R who 

was 13 years old when she took her own life in 2013 in an out of county residential 
establishment. 
 

As a mark of respect, the Committee stood for a moments silence in memory of the 
child. 

 
Lara Patel, Deputy Director, Safeguarding Children’s’ Social Care, attended the 
meeting and informed Members that the SCR report focused on learning and an 

explanation of what happened. The findings of the SCR were: 
 

 Working to keep children safe within their families continues to be a challenge 
and there is the need to ensure that improvements made since child R was a 
child are embedded into practice.  

 Placement Planning and managing the complex needs of Children in Care 
needs sufficient placement availability, clarity of role across the professional 

network and systems that scrutinise and challenge how well the child’s needs 
can be met.  

 Where there is a risk of suicide, Children in Care should have a clearly 

articulated suicide prevention plan which takes account of emotional, 
behavioural and situational risks. 

 
Reference was made to the ten recommendations which came out of the review 

which were turned into an action plan.  
 
Derek Benson, the Independent Chair of the Oxfordshire Safeguarding Children 

Board attended the meeting and reported that there would be constant monitoring of 
the recommendations. 

 
Reference was made to the impact of the pandemic on the safeguarding of children 
in terms of increased caseloads, CAMHS waiting lists, co-ordination with other 

agencies and Multi-Agency Risk Assessments where all agencies were involved with 
the child. An increase in people expressing an interest in becoming foster carers is 

needed to be able to provide more local placements. 
 
As part of the Early Strategy there is a target to undertake 10,000 Early Help 

Assessments to prevent children from needing statutory interventions.  It was 
acknowledged that this would be a challenge for agencies.  

 
More local placements are needed so that children were not placed in areas away 
from their families. 

 
Recruitment and Retention of Social Workers was a national issue, with Oxfordshire 

competing with other local authorities. It was agreed that the Recruitment and 
Retention Strategy for Social Workers would be submitted to this Committee 
(ACTION: Director of Children’s Services). 

 
RESOLVED – That the findings and recommendations of the Serious Case 
Review for Child R, and the actions taken to date be noted.       

   

Page 7



 

 

 
 

6/22 CONSULTATION ON SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES 

IN OXFORDSHIRE  
(Agenda No. 8) 

 
The Committee was provided with a report which informed Members of a public 
consultation on proposed changes to arrangements for SEND for children and young 

people in Oxfordshire which was launched on 10th January, 2022. 
 

The Chair commented that it was unusual that the Committee was being asked to 
comment on the consultation at this point in time and reference was made to some 
parents of SEND children having difficulty accessing the consultation. Members did 

not think that scrutiny should be a consultee in the process, but should have a role in 
the policy development. 

 
The Director of Children’s Services reported that the Committee would have the 
opportunity to scrutinise the policy.      

 
There have also been a series of all member briefings on this issue. The report 

provides an opportunity for the Committee to scrutinise the policy and also to 
consider any recommendations to feed into the consultation.  
 

Members were informed that reasons that changes needed to be made were 
outcomes for children with SEND in Oxfordshire were not good enough. In addition, it 

needed to be ensured that effective and efficient use was made of available funding, 
which would mean that difficult decisions must be made and the Council needed to 
act now. 

 
The key strategic objectives being consulted on were: 

 Improving outcomes for children with SEND 

 Developing a continuum of local provision to meet the requirements of children 

and young people with SEND 

 Good physical and mental health and wellbeing 

 Improving post-16 education, learning, employment and training 

 Positive move into adulthood for young people with SEND. 
 

The proposed changes which were subject to consultation were : 
 

 Reform of Top-Up funding arrangements for children and young people with 
an EHC Plan 

 Resource bases as a core part of the range of provision 

 Sufficiency of specialist day placements in Oxfordshire 

 Enhanced pathways within mainstream schools 

 Reconfiguring requests for additional funding for schools 

 Co-ordinated approach to supporting children with SEND at the earliest 

opportunity. 
 

Page 8



 

The Director of Children’s Services commented that SEND was not a good system 

for making use of resources. The Council were awaiting the outcome of the national 
review into SEND. 
 

Kate Bradley - Head of SEND, Carole Stow - Consultation Manager of OCC, 
Susannah Wintersgill -  Director Strategy, Insight and Communications, Ed Edwards 

– Senior SEND Consultation Officer and Simon Knight – Head Teacher attended the 
meeting to provide background to the consultation.    
 
Issues raised by Members 
 

 Training was an important aspect of SEND and this was not referred to in the 
paper. Officers reported that training was key to the approach.  

 The phasing of top ups would be dependent on the outcome of the 

consultation. 

 There needed to be support and challenge in schools with School leaders 

thinking strategically. 

 There was a need for commissioning of services. 

 This review result in a potential overspend for Oxfordshire. 

 It was important that pupil’s voices were also heard and Members were 

informed that sessions had been held with young people to get their views. 

 There would be an email address which would be published to enable views to 
be emailed in separate to the on-line consultation. 

 There would be an all Member briefing which would take place before Cabinet 
considers the policy. 

 
Councillor Liz Brighouse, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, 

Education and Young People’s Services said she was keen for the SEND topic to 
be considered again by this Overview and Scrutiny Committee to enable comments 
to be fed to Cabinet. 

 
RESOLVED – That the issue be noted as a possible future topic and it be 

determined at the next meeting how and when this could be considered on the 
Committee’s Work Programme for the next Municipal Year.   

 

7/22 WORK PLAN 2021/22  
(Agenda No. 9) 
 
It was agreed that the following be added to the Committee’s Work Plan: 

 
Education White Paper 

Recruitment and Retention Strategy for Social Workers.    
 
 

…………………………………………………….. in the Chair 
 

Date of signing …………………………………………………. 
 
 

 

Page 9



 

 

 

Page 10



 

Divisions Affected – all  

 
 

PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

7 April 2022 
 

COOPTED MEMBERS OF THE PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 

Report by Director of Law and Governance 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Committee is RECOMMENDED to:- 

 

1.1 To make preparations for the co-option of statutory consultees on the 
People Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

 

1.2 To consider the need for further representation on the People Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee;   

 
1.3 That where required the Constitution Working Group considers the 

Committee’s request to broaden its co-option rights within the Council’s 

Constitution.   

Context  

 
2. Drawing on the relevant legislation (Local Government Act 2000) the Council’s 

Constitution makes provision for the co-option of statutory consultees on the 

relevant Education Committee.  For the purposes of Oxfordshire County 
Council, that is the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  This paper sets 

out the legislative position, issues for consideration and the practical steps.    
 

Legislative And Constitutional Position 
 
3. The Education Act 1996 made provision for statutory consultees to sit and vote 

on education matters.  As Councils moved to executive arrangements under the 
Local Government Act 2000 (the Act), that requirement moved to the Scrutiny 

Committee that dealt with such matters.  At Oxfordshire, that is the People 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 

4. The Act, and translating that Act through the County Council’s Constitution, 
provides for the following: - 

 
(a) Two Parent Governor Representatives – from maintained primary and 

secondary schools; 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 

(b) one representative from the Church of England (appointed by the Oxford 
Diocesan Board of Education) and one jointly appointed Roman Catholic 
representative drawn from the areas covered by the Bishop of 

Portsmouth and the Archbishop of Birmingham.   
 

5. The terms of reference for this Committee, within the Constitution, provides no 
room for additional non-statutory co-opted members (voting or non-voting) and 
the Committee should consider whether this satisfactory or otherwise.   

 

Issues for Consideration  
 

6. Many Local Authorities have provided for non-statutory voting and non-voting 
Members of their relevant Education Committees. This is to incorporate 

additional perspective into the discussions at Committee and as part of work 
programming.  Peterborough City Council have a co-opted member 

representing the Muslim Community and rural Parishes and at Trafford Council 
there is a Parent Governor Representative for Special Schools and Teaching 
Representatives.   

 
7. Members may also wish to consider the appropriateness of working within the 

existing boundaries of the Constitution but requesting that the Christian 
representatives make reasonable efforts in which to reflect the religious 
educational diversity across the County. This would mirror the role of the Lords 

Spiritual in the House of Lords who ‘provide an important independent voice and 
spiritual insight to the work of the Upper House and, while they make no claims 

to direct representation, they seek to be a voice for all people of faith, not just 
Christians.  It would be reasonable to assume that some faiths may disagree 
with this.     

 
8. However, many Councils have found it ‘more proportionate to invite experts to 

give evidence at specific meetings, finding this a better use of their time than a 
standing position on a committee. This is increasingly the case where 
committees have a wide remit (such as People Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee), and there may not be items at every meeting which reflect the 
areas of the co-optees’ expertise’ (CfGS, 2014).   

 
9. In order to do this well, the Committee, through officers principally, would need 

to develop a wide network of ‘trusted stakeholders’ and hold relationships with 

them directly or indirectly.  This would enable the Committee to create more 
diversity across the entirety of the People Scrutiny Committee’s brief, not just 

the education one, and hear from groups that aren’t traditionally heard.  
 

10. Very recent examples of this include the invitation of Oxfordshire Mind and the 

Oxfordshire Parent and Carers Forum to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 10 March.  Feedback sought after the meeting demonstrated that 

their participation added significant richness to the discussions that took place.      

 
 
 
 

Page 12



Next Steps 

 
11. The Committee has raised on previous occasions, the need to progress 

appointing to the four vacant positions on the Committee so plans should be 

progressed to correspond with the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, and 
the Bishop and Archbishop of Portsmouth and Birmingham. It is hoped that 

those co-opted members will take their seats early in the new municipal year.   
 

12. Working with Governor Services at the County Council, the Committee should 

also progress nominations from parent governor representatives.  In the event 
that a series of nominations come forward from parent governor representatives 

there may be a need to run a small election.  This could foreseeably create a 
delay but in any event, they should be in place towards the end of the first 
quarter of the new municipal year.      

 
13. Subject to the Committee’s views on an expansion of co-opted members this 

must be discussed as part of the Constitution Working Group. Any changes to 
Terms of Reference will be made via Council approval which will create 
unavoidable delay.    

 
14. Subject to the Committee’s views on creating a pool of trusted stakeholders to 

draw upon, this should be progressed with the Principal Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer when he is in post.   

Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
15. The Council’s Strategic Plan for 2022-2025 has created a strategic priority in 

which to ‘play our part in a vibrant and participatory local democracy’ and 
specifically to support ‘an enhanced role for Overview and Scrutiny to contribute 
to open and transparent decision making’.  

Financial Implications 

 

16. The payment of reasonable expenses for all co-opted members will have a 
nominal impact on budgets under the control of the Monitoring Officer and will 

be managed within existing allocations.  
 

Lorna Baxter, Director of Finance  

Legal Implications 

 

17. The County Council’s obligations in respect of co-opting Members onto the 
Council’s relevant education Committee have been met in full.   
 

Richard Hodby 
 Solicitor  

Staff Implications 

 
18. Progressing the actions within this report will be drawn from within existing 

resources in Overview and Scrutiny, Governor Services and Legal teams.   

Page 13



Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
19. Progressing the appointment of co-opted members from different faith 

communities and those representing local schools will enhance the Council’s 

ability to promote equality and inclusion and the fostering of good relations.   

Sustainability Implications 

 
20. None immediately arising from this report.   

 

Risk Management 

 

21. The risk associated with not appointing to the Committee relate to the Council’s 
reputation amongst Members of the Committee and could invite legal challenge, 

although the probability of this is quite small.   
 

Consultations 

 
22. None immediately arising from this report.   

 
Anita Bradley 
Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer  

 
Annex: Terms of Reference – People Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
 

 

Background papers: Centre for Governance and Scrutiny – ‘Membership and 
Political Management’ (2014) 

 
Other Documents: None  
 

Contact Officer: Helen Mitchell 
 Interim Scrutiny Manager  

 Helen.mitchell@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
March 2022 

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 Statutory Co-Opted Members to the Committee

